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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 
 

EDWIN BLEILER, 
  
 Plaintiff, 
 
v. 
 
COLLEGE OF THE HOLY CROSS, 
 
 Defendant. 
 

C.A. No. _________ 
 

NOTICE OF REMOVAL 

The defendant College of the Holy Cross (“Holy Cross”) hereby gives notice that 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1441, and 1446, it is removing this action from the 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts Superior Court, Middlesex County, to the United States 

District Court for the District of Massachusetts (Eastern Division).  The grounds for removal are 

set forth below. 

1. Plaintiff Edwin Bleiler (“Mr. Bleiler”) filed a Complaint against Holy Cross in 

Middlesex County (Massachusetts) Superior Court on July 28, 2011.  The case is captioned 

Edwin Bleiler v. College of the Holy Cross, Middlesex Superior Court, Civil Action No. 2011-

02645.  The Complaint is attached as Exhibit A. 

2. On August 12, 2011, Holy Cross was served with a copy of the Complaint and 

summons.   

3. The time within which Holy Cross is required by 28 U.S.C. § 1446(b) to file this 

Notice of Removal has not expired. 

4. Based on information contained in the Complaint, Mr. Bleiler is a permanent 

resident of Sudbury Massachusetts.  (See Complaint, ¶ 1, Ex. A.) 
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5. Holy Cross is a private, not-for-profit college located in Worcester, 

Massachusetts. 

6. This action may be removed to this Court by Holy Cross pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 

§ 1331, 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a) and 28 U.S.C. §1441(b) because Bleiler asserts a claim arising 

under the laws of the United States, specifically Title 20 of the United States Code, section 1681 

(“Title IX”) (See Complaint, Count I, Ex. A.) 

7. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a) because this Court is the United 

States District Court for the district and division embracing the place wherein the state court 

action is pending. 

8. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), a copy of this Notice of Removal is being filed 

with the Civil Division of the Middlesex County Superior Court. 

9. Pursuant to Local Rule 81.1(a), certified or attested copies of all records, 

proceedings, and docket entries in the Middlesex Superior Court action shall be filed with this 

Court within twenty-eight (28) days. 

WHEREFORE, Holy Cross requests that this action proceed before this Court as an 

action properly removed.   

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated:  September 1, 2011 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
COLLEGE OF THE HOLY CROSS 
 
 
/S/ HAROLD W. POTTER, JR.  
Harold W. Potter, Jr. (BBO No. 404240) 
Katrina N. Chapman (BBO No. 676177) 
HOLLAND & KNIGHT LLP 
10 St. James Avenue 
Boston, Massachusetts 02116 
(617) 523-2700 
harold.potter@hklaw.com 
katrina.chapman@hklaw.com 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was furnished by mail to 
counsel for the plaintiff, this 1st day of September, 2011. 
 
 

/S/ HAROLD W. POTTER, JR 
Harold W. Potter, Jr. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

MIDDLESEX, SS 
SUPERIOR COURT DEPARTMENT 

FILED CIVI. ACTION NO • 
WTHEOFFICEOFTHE 

CLERK OF COURTS 

EDWIN BLEILER 
Plaintiff 

TOKTHhlUUNI > OFMIDOIESEX 

| JUL.2f.201t 

' / / CLERK I 

11-2645 

COLLEGE OF THE HOLY CROSS, 
Defendant 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff Edwin Bleiler, through counsel, alleges as follows: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

This is an action for preliminary and permanent injunctive reliejj 

from the Defendant College of the Holy Cross's wrongful expulsion of 

from the application of "disciplinary procedures" that were in violation of the College's rules and 

policies, the requirements of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972,20 U.S.C. §§ 

1681-1688 (201 l)("Title IX") and its implementing of regulation at 34 C.F.R. 106, and 

principles of due process and fundamental fairness. 

PARTIES 

1. Plaintiff Edwin Bleiler ("Mr. Bleiler") is a permanent resident of Sudbury, Massachusetts. 

2. Defendant College of the Holy Cross ("College") is a private, non-profit college located in 

Worcester, Massachusetts. 

3. Plaintiff Mr. Bleiler was a full time student at the College until his expulsion from the 

College, effective on May 26,2011. 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4. ™ s C ° « ^ J ^ i c « o n „ v e r ^ C . 1 I e E . b e c a T O i « S p n I K i p a 1 p 1 a c e o f b u s t a e S s i s i „ t h e 

Commonwealth. 

5. Va» ispropainms c ^ fcamt „, ̂  a ^ „ , ̂  , ̂ ^ ^ piataaff 

resides in Middlesex County. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

I. Background and Relationship of the Parties 

6. Established in 1843, the College is a private, non-profit school granting undergraduate 

degrees. 

7. Mr. Bleiler was a full-time student at the College from September 2007 until his expulsion on 

May 26,2011. 

8. At the time of his expulsion he had successfully completed the coursework with a 3.13 GP A 

and the full 32 credits necessary to graduate and receive his degree on May 26,2011. 

9. In early May 2011, another student at the College, CM. made a complaint to the College that 

she and Mr. Bleiler had engaged in sexual intercourse at a time when she was intoxicated and 

therefore unable to give effective consent. 

10. Mr. Bleiler, in turn, maintains that CM. was not incapacitated and that she willingly engaged 

in sexual relations with him. 

11. Through the disciplinary procedures outlined below, the College conducted a hearing, which 

resulted in Mr. Bleiler's expulsion from the College on the very same day he would have 

graduated. 
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n. Re..™, maplbury P o l W e s M d r n a d a n s m ^ fcrtb ta ^ ^ ^ ^ 

•he Hoi, Crass - student Handbook and Planner 2010-2011" ("Handbook"). 

U. 1 * Handbook contains, lmer ,,«,, . s t a t e m M o f ^ ^ w ^ ^ . ^ 

Procedures for Students ("Disciplinary Procedures"), which sett forth in part the following 

language: 

. . . In the case of disciplinary procedures, students have the right 
to be informed of any charges of misconduct, the right to adequate 
time to prepare a response to the charges, the right to hear 
information in support of the charges, the right to present evidence 
against the charges, and the right to a fair process which is 
appropriate to the circumstances. 

(emphasis added). 

14. Under the section titled Authority for Student Discipline, the Handbook states that: 

The purpose of disciplinary proceedings is to provide fair 
evaluation of student's responsibility for violating college 
regulations. The rules of evidence are not applied, nor shall 
deviations from prescribed procedures necessarily invalidate a 
decision, unless significant prejudice to a student respondent or the 
college may result. 

15. Any Student who is accused ("Accused") of violating policy in a way that may result in 

suspension or dismissal from the College may be referred to the Community Standards Board 

("Board"). Prior to hearing, the Accused and the Student Complainant will meet separately 

with the hearing coordinator. 

16. The parties may inspect the case file at the Office of Student Conduct before hearing but may 

not copy or remove the file. The Board shall receive all written materials before hearing. 

,7 The Board is comprised of five members, two stodeots, a. leas, one faculty member, and a, 

icaat one staff member, the fifth member can be either faculty or suff. The Handbook sets 
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forth the following policy and rules regarding board members and potential conflict of 

interest: 

The accused and the accuser are informed of the names of the 
members of the hearing panel scheduled to hear the complaint not 
fewer than 72 hours prior to the hearing. If the accuser or the 
accused has particular information as to why a specific person 
should not be a part of the panel hearing the case, either of these 
parties must present the information to the Director of Student 
Conduct and Community Standards or designated hearing 
coordinator in writing 48 hours prior to the start of the hearing. If 
the Director deems that there is information to suggest a potential 
conflict, another board member will be substituted. The decision of 
the Director or hearing coordinator is final. 

Board members are expected to notify the Director or hearing 
coordinator and disqualify themselves from serving on a board if 
they suspect a potential conflict with any party participating in a 
board hearing. 

18. Furthermore, the Disciplinary Procedures require confidentiality and no communication 

between the Accused, Accuser, witnesses or Board members prior to hearing. "Any act 

which violates this confidentiality may be dealt with as a subsequent violation or as grounds 

for dismissal from the hearing." 

, , Upon conclusion of the hearing the Board adjourns for deliberations. The Diraaor - hearing 

time before or during heating or deliberations. 

^ ^ n o r d o e s i t a n ^ t h e H e a r i n g O f B c e r t o b e p r e s c n t f o r d . e n t r r e t . o ^ 

d e l i b M , i 0 n S ' AA -,»ifheorshecande,nonsU*ea)ala*of 
M A student has b r i g h t to appeal a Boaxd dec,s,on,f he or sh 

. , . • „f process ore) if there is significant ne« 
toness in the procedures b) a vtolauon of process, or 
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information (previously unknown) that has been revealed or discovered which alters the facts 

of the matter and may alter the outcome. 

22. The Disciplinary Procedures provide that Board hearings, but not its deliberations, are 

recorded and that appealing students may listen to but may not obtain a copy of the 

recording. 

23. The Disciplinary Procedures further provide that recordings, notes, and all materials related 

to a case remain the sole property of the College and that on most occasions, at the 

completion of the internal appeal process these recordings are destroyed, (emphasis added). 

24. Appeals of expulsions are reviewed by the College President. While the sanction's severity 

is not grounds for appeal, a student may ask that the appeals officer review the sanction as 

part of the appellate process. An appeal must be received within five days of the date of the 

decision letter. If denied, the sanction is immediately imposed. 

III. The College's Sexual Misconduct Policy 

25. The Handbook defines "Sexual Misconduct 1" as "any sexual penetration., .however slight, 

with any object or sexual intercourse by a man or a woman upon a man or a woman without 

effective consent..." 

26. The policy goes on to state that "consent may never be given by.. .those who are 

incapacitated as a result of alcohol or other drug consumption (voluntary or involuntary). 

(emphasis added). 

2 7 As set forth in the Handbook, and as enforced in Mr. B U « - . case, the Coilege's — 

nUsconduennposesafonn of strict liability on male s tents : ifa male and female stud** 

a_nod.in.oxica.ed and engage in sexua, acnvity, d,e tnaie student could face e*»».sio, for 
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violation of the policy without any evidence of coercion, manipulation, force, or any 

additional culpable behavior. 

28. Representatives of the College have acknowledged in the press that male students could face 

catastrophic consequences for behavior that may not be any more culpable than that of their 

sexual partner: 

I think on College campuses we've focused a lot on talking to 
young women about, you know, partying safe and not leaving your 
friend alone and watching your drink and that. But I think we 
haven't done enough with our young men to say, you know, if 
you get involved with a young woman and you do not know her 
all that well and you 've been drinking, you know, this is a 
warning sign. This is not something that you want to engage in 
because of what possible consequences could be. And we know 
that in these situations that young men and women are not clearly 
communicating about, you know, what they want to engage in and 
what's okay in each step, you know, and that doesn't happen. And 
that's part of the confusion in the issue on our campuses. 

http://www.npr.org/templates/storv/storv.php?storvld=124199190 (March 10, 2010 interview 

with College's Director of Student Conduct and Community Standards Paul Irish) (emphasis 

added). 

29. On information and belief, the sexual misconduct policy has only been enforced against male 

students at the College. 

30. The allegations against Mr. Bleiler were solely that he had sexual intercourse with CM. 

without effective consent, and that she could not give effective consent due to her 

intoxication. 

Bl.Therewere no a i le rons of ooerc,™ or fcce, and .here «as no aUegaUon « ^ B l * 

was responsible for CM.'s intoxication. 

.V.The CUege's VM.ti.ns of Disciplinary Procedures and Denial .f a Fair Process 

32. The Board hearing took place on May IS, 2011. 

Case 1:11-cv-11541-DJC   Document 1-1    Filed 09/01/11   Page 7 of 16

http://www.npr.org/templates/storv/storv.php?storvld=124199190
http://VM.ti.ns


33. Despite Mr. Bleiler's timely, written objections to one of the student Board members on the 

grounds of a conflict, Paul Irish, the Hearing Coordinator ("Hearing Coordinator"), refused 

to replace that student. 

34. Mr. Irish's sole stated bases for this refusal were that: (i) he had already Pleased" the 

backup panelists; and (ii) the Board member had represented that he had no conflicts with 

either student. 

35. On information and belief, Mr. Irish conducted no meaningful inquiry into the possibility of 

bias or a conflict with respect to this Board member. 

36. The name of the other student Board member was misspelled in the notice to Mr. Bleiler, 

therefore he was unable to determine initially if there was any conflict. 

37. By chance, and within the 48 hour period required by the rules, Mr. Bleiler learned the 

correct spelling of her name, and that she was also friends with CM. 

38. Mr. Bleiler raised this concern as well with Mr. Irish, as permitted by the handbook. 

39. Mr. Irish responded by stating that such a relationship was not grounds for an "automatic" 

disqualification of a Board member, and declined to replace her. 

40. In fact, as Mr. Irish was aware prior to the hearing, the second student Board member had 

been C.M.'s Resident Assistant ("RA"). 

41. RA's at the College are responsible for advising and assisting the students in their charge on 

a host of issues, including "Assist[ing] individuals with personal, social and academic 

concemsmanatmosphereof^ 
egard to personal safety, theft, fire prevention, and policies regarding sexual misconduct. 

/ 

ret 
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42. As C.M's RA, therefore, the second student Board member had likely established a personal 

relationship with CM. as advisor and confidante, and may have even provided advice and 

counseling on the very policies that were the subject of Mr. Bleiler's disciplinary hearing. 

43. Mr. Irish did not take any action to replace this student on the Board. 

44. The bias of the first student Board member was manifest during the hearing by his disparate 

treatment of CM. and her witnesses as opposed to Mr. Bleiler. While the Board member 

was effusive in praising the former, his hostility towards Mr. Bleiler was so overt, in the form 

of aggressive badgering, that the Board's chair had to verbally restrain him. 

45. The College wither violated both its written procedures and fundamental fairness by 

allowing Mr. Irish to participate in the Board's deliberations. 

46. Mr. Irish's role in the pre-hearing procedure required him to discuss the allegations with both 

parties and witnesses, and to review statements and evidence prior to the hearing that 

were not necessarily part of the testimony to the Board, and therefore not subject to 

cross-examination. 

disciplinary procedures and allege sexual misconduct, Mr. Irish said: 

O h . I t h i n k t M s i s a p e . a s ^ 
ve^ underreported and we really ̂ JvkZJ/M comfortable 
unreported? What can ^ ^ ^ ^people know that 
to comeforward, tofeel supported^^^^e with 
when there is an ̂ ^ e r l n g yScnow, consequences? 
everlasting, you know, life-altering, yo 

, • wnhn7storYld=i24199i90 (March 10,2010) 

h t f i ^ / w w j * ^ ^ 

(emphasis added). 
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nor 

as 

48. Despite his extensive ex parte contact with both witnesses, receipt of information outside the 

proceedings themselves, and potential bias of his own, Mr. Irish was present at all times 

during the Board's deliberations. 

49. While the Disciplinary Procedures permit the Board to consult with the Hearing Coordinator 

during deliberations regarding procedural elements, neither the Disciplinary Procedures 

the relevant law permit the participation in deliberations of a person in a prosecutorial role, 

the ex parte presentation of evidence in the fact-finding process denies basic fairness. 

50. Mr. Bleiler is unable to determine how Mr. Irish's participation in deliberations may have 

influenced the Board's decision. As the contents of deliberations were unrecorded and thus 

remain unknown to Mr. Bleiler, he therefore had no opportunity to respond. 

51. In addition to the aforementioned violations, the Disciplinary Procedures were riddled with 

other problems. For example, though the investigating Public Safety Officer who appeared 

at the hearing assured the Board that witnesses were separated during the investigation to 

ensure accuracy and avoid contamination of their testimony, two of CM.'s key witnesses 

acknowledged that they were seated together while they were waiting during the process of 

the initial investigation. 

52. Further, CM. testified at hearing to her virginity before having sexual relations with Mr. 

Bleiler. constituting impermissible, and prejudicial, "irrelevant sexual history" explicitly 

prohibited by the Handbook. 

proceedings. 
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54. Mr. Bleiler was only p i t t e d to listen to the audio recordings of the hearing in preparing 

his appeal, and was not allowed to copy it or bring an advisor or counsel in to listen with 

him. 

55. Because no record whatsoever was kept of the deliberations, moreover, Mr. Bleiler was 

unable to ascertain the extent of the prejudice caused by Mr. Irish's improper participation in 

the deliberations. 

56. The combined effect of these procedural violations, acts and omissions resulted in significant 

prejudice to Mr. Bleiler, and made fair hearing and deliberations impossible. 

V. Consequences to Mr. Bleiler 

57. Mr. Bleiler was expelled after having completed all requirements necessary to graduate from 

the College: he completed all coursework, received grades and the number of credits 

necessary to graduate. 

58. Mr. Bleiler (or others on his behalf) paid a full four years' tuition and fees to the College, 

totaling approximately $220,000. 

59. Without a College diploma and degree, Mr. Bleiler cannot apply to graduate school, nor does 

he have any reasonable prospects of employment commensurate with his education. As a 

result, Mr. Bleiler faces catastrophic present and future economic loss. 

60. Further, with expulsion for "sexual misconduct" on his record, Mr. Bleiler may not even be 

able to enroll at another institution of comparable quality in order to repeat some of his 

requirements and re-earn his college degree. 

COUNT I 
Violation of 20 U.S.C. § 1681(Title IX) 

61.Plaintiff re-alleges and reasserts me allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 54 as if fully set 

forth herein. 

10 
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62. Title IX states in pertinent part: "no person in the United States shall, on the basis of sex, 

be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 

discrimination under any education program or activity receiving Federal financial 

assistance..." 20 U.S.C. § 1681(a). 

63. The College receives federal funding under Title IX, 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-1688 (2011). 

64. As a Title IX recipient, the College is required to comply with the requirements of Title IX as 

well as those of the regulations promulgated thereunder by the Department of Education. 

65. These regulations require each school receiving Title IX funds to "adopt and publish 

grievance procedures providing for the prompt and equitable resolution of student... 

complaints alleging any action which would be prohibited by Title IX or its regulations." 

34 C.F.R. 106.8 (2010). (emphasis added). 

66. The regulations further require that "a school's procedures must accord due process to both 

parties involved ..." (emphasis added). See Title DC (2001) "Revised Sexual Harassment 

Guidance" at 22 (notice of publication at 66 Fed. Reg. 5512, January 19,2001). 

67. The College's disciplinary policies, as written and as implemented in Mr. Bleiler's case, are 

not equitable and do not accord due process to the accused. 

68. On information and belief, the fundamental unfairness that imbued Mr. Bleiler's disciplinary 

process, as well as the erroneous outcome, are part of a pattern of decision-making that 

discriminates against male students accused of sexual misconduct. 
69. In addition, the sexual misconduct policy at issue, both as written and as enforced against Mr. 

engaging in 
in sexual activity while intoxicated. 

U 
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70. As a result of the College's enforcement of this policy and its failure to comply with the 

other requirements under Title DC with respect to its disciplinary procedures, Mr. Bleiler has 

been denied the benefits of the College's educational program in violation of Title DC. 

COUNTn 
Breach of Contract 

71. Plaintiff re-alleges and reasserts the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 71 as if fully set 

forth herein. 

72. Plaintiff and the Defendant College had a contractual relationship, either express or implied. 

Such contract was formed on the one hand by Mr. Bleiler's payment (or payment made on 

his behalf) of tuition and fees to the College and on the other, by the terms contained in the 

Student Handbook, die College Catalogue, and other College materials. 

73. Mr. Bleiler had a reasonable expectation that the College would adhere to the terms of such 

contract, as contained in the Disciplinary Procedures and other College materials. 

74. Mr. Bleiler farther had a reasonable expectation that the College's stated procedures would 

comply with the requirement under the Title DC regulations to provide an equitable process 

for adjudicating claims of sexual misconduct and to ensure due process to both the accuser 

and the accused. 

75. The College breached the terras of its contract with Mr. Bleiler by violating its Disciplinary 

Procedures as set forth above, and in particular, by allowing conflicted members to serve on 

the Board; through the participation in the Board's unrecorded deliberations by the Hearing 

Officer, who before the hearing had separately met with and taken statements from Mr. 

Bleiler and CM.; through the College's failure to sequester witnesses during the 

investigatory process; and through the admission at hearing of C.M.'s irrelevant sexual 

history, all in violation of the Disciplinary Rules. 

12 
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76. The College through its policy further deprived Mr. Bleiier of cross examination of two 

witnesses whose statements were part of the record but who did not testify, and denied Mr. 

Bleiier meaningful appeal by not allowing him to copy the recorded hearing and by failing to 

make any record of the Board's deliberations. 

77. Defendant College's procedural violations, acts and omissions as described herein rendered 

the proceedings unfair, contravening the specific Handbook provision entitling students to 

"the right to a fair process which is appropriate to the circumstances." 

78. Such failures combined to cause Mr. Bleiier significant prejudice in that he was denied an 

even-handed assessment of the facts, resulting in his expulsion and forfeiture of the diploma 

that he had fully earned at the time of the decision. 

COUNTin 
Breach of the Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing 

79. Plaintiff re-alleges and reasserts the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 79 as if fully set 

forth herein. 

80. Massachusetts law recognizes an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing in all 

contracts, either express or implied. 

81. By the conduct alleged herein, the College has breached the implied covenant of good faith 

and fair dealing, and caused harm to Mr. Bleiier. 

COUNT IV 
Unjust Enrichment 

82. Plaintiff re-alleges and reasserts 

forth herein. 

83. In the alternative, should this Court 

pleads Unjust Enrichment. 

the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through 82 as if fully set 

find no remedy at law available to Plaintiff, Plaintiff 

13 
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84. The college received a substantial monetary benefit, approximately $220,000 in the form of 

four years' tuition and fees paid in full by Mr. Bleiler or on his behalf before disciplinary 

proceedings commenced. 

85. As set forth above, due to gross and numerous violations of its Disciplinary Procedures and 

its policy regarding access to and preservation of the record, the process by which the 

College found Mr. Bleiler responsible for the alleged acts was inherently flawed and 

fundamentally unfair, causing Mr. Bleiler significant prejudice. 

86. As a result, Mr. Bleiler is left without a diploma and degree despite having completed all 

requirements for graduation. 

87. For the reasons set forth herein, under the circumstances it would be inequitable for the 

College to retain the tuition it has received from the Bleiler family. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE Plaintiff Edwin Bleiler requests that the Court: 

i. Enjoin the College from enforcing its order of expulsion and from retaining Mr. 

Bleiler's diploma; 

ii. Award damages for the harm to Mr. Bleiler arising from the Defendant's improper 

conduct; and 

iii. Award such other legal or equitable relief as may be appropriate. 

H 
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Respectfully submitted, 
EDWIN BLEILER 
By his attorneys: 

Nicole A. Longton ^ 
Longton Law Office 
316 Main Street, Suite 400 
Worcester, MA 01608 
Office-508-793-2000 
Fax-508-300-0083 
nicole@longtonlaw.com 

Emily E. Smith*Eee(BBO# 634223) 
Smith Lee Nebenzahl LLP 
One Post Office Square 
Sharon, MA 02067 
781-784-2322 
781-793-0600 (facsimile) 
eslee@smithleelaw.com 

Dated: July 2^2011 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS 

1. Title of case (name of first party on each side only)_ 
Edwin Bleiler v. College of the Holy Cross 

2. Category in which the case belongs based upon the numbered nature of suit code listed on the civil cover sheet. (See local 

rule 40.1(a)(1)). 

L J I. 410, 441,470, 535, 830*, 891, 893, 894, 895, R.23, REGARDLESS OF NATURE OF SUIT. 

| | II. 110,130,140,160,190,196, 230,240, 290,320,362, 370, 371, 380, 430, 440,442-446, 710, 720, 730, 740, 790, 
820*. 840*. 850,870, 871. 

[ / ] III. 120,150,151,152,153,195, 210, 220, 245, 310, 315, 330, 340, 345, 350, 355, 360, 365, 368, 385,400,422, 423, 
'—' 450, 460,462,463,465, 480,490, 510, 530, 540, 550, 555, 610, 620, 625, 630, 640, 650, 660, 690, 791, 810, 861-

865, 875, 890, 892, 900, 950. 

'Also complete AO 120 or AO 121. for patent, trademark or copyright cases. 

3. Title and number, if any, of related cases. (See local rule 40.1(g)). If more than one prior related case has been filed in this 
district please Indicate the title and number of the first filed case in this court. 

4. Has a prior action between the same parties and based on the same claim ever been filed in this court? 

YES Q ] NO \7_ 

5. Does the complaint in this case question the constitutionality of an act of congress affecting the public interest? (See 28 USC 
§2403) 

YES • NO \7\ 
If so, is the U.S.A. or an officer, agent or employee of the U.S. a party? 

YES \^] NO | | 

6. Is this case required to be heard and determined by a district court of three judges pursuant to title 28 USC §2284? 

YES Q NO [7] 

7. Do all of the parties in this action, excluding governmental agencies of the united states and the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts ("governmental agencies"), residing in Massachusetts reside in the same division? - (See Local Rule 40.1(d)). 

YES • NO [ 7 ] 

A. If yes, in which division do all of the non-governmental parties reside? 

Eastern Division Y_\ Central Division [_] Western Division |_J 

B. If no, in which division do the majority of the plaintiffs or the only parties, excluding governmental agencies, 
residing in Massachusetts reside? 

Eastern Division [ 7 1 Central Division \_J Western Division | _ | 

8. If filing a Notice of Removal - are there any motions pending in the state court requiring the attention of this Court? (If yes, 
submit a separate sheet identifying the motions) 

YES LJ NO [71 
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